Public Document Pack

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

A meeting of the RCT CHARITY FOR THE VISUALLY IMPAIRED CABINET COMMITTEE

will be held at the Committee Room 1, The Pavilions, Cambrian Park, Clydach Vale, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX

TUESDAY, 28TH FEBRUARY, 2017 at 2.00 PM

Contact: Hannah Williams (Tel No. 01442 424062)

LIST OF ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

To receive disclosures of personal interest from Members in accordance with the Code of Conduct.

Note:

- 1. Members are requested to identify the item number and subject matter that their interest relates to and signify the nature of the personal interest; and
- 2. Where Members withdraw from a meeting as a consequence of the disclosure of a prejudicial interest they <u>must</u> notify the Chairman when they leave.

2. MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the last meeting of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Charity for the Visually Impaired Cabinet Committee held on 7th July, 2016.

(Pages 3 - 4)

3. TO RECEIVE THE DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS, CARDIFF INSTITUTE FOR THE BLIND

To receive the Director of Operations, Cardiff Institute for the Blind, updating Trustees on the current position in respect of the Big Lottery bid for funding for their New Places, New Experiences project.

4. RHONDDA CYNON TAF TRUST FUND FOR VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE

To receive the report of the Group Director, Community & Children's Services, updating the Cabinet Committee Members (the Trustees) of the 'Rhondda Cynon Taf Trust Fund for Blind and Partially Sighted People in RCT' (the Trust Fund) on the service that 'Cardiff Institute for the Blind' (t/a RNIB Cymru (CIB)) is delivering within Rhondda Cynon Taff.

(Pages 5 - 8)

Service Director and Secretary to the Cabinet

OFFICIAL ATTENDANCE OF RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL'S CHARITY FOR THE VISUALLY IMPAIRED CABINET COMMITTEE.

Minutes of the meeting of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Charity for the Visually Impaired Cabinet Committee on the 7th July, 2016 at 1pm at the Council Headquarters, Clydach Vale.

County Borough Councillors in attendance:-

G Hopkins - Chairman

R Bevan M Forey

RCT Council:-

L Bridgman, Y Powell

Cardiff Institute for the Blind:-

K Harris - Director of Operations

1 WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS

The Chairman took the opportunity to welcome everyone to the meeting and welcomed Mr K Harris from the Cardiff Institute for the Blind (CIB).

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST.

There were no declarations of interest made pertaining to the agenda.

3 RHONDDA CYNON TAF TRUST FUND FOR VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE

The Head of Service, Short Term Intervention & Community Care referred Members to her report and reminded Members of the decision taken at their meeting on the 26th February, 2015 in respect of the extension of the contractual arrangements to the Cardiff Institute for the Blind (CIB) for a three year period and of their concerns in respect of the sustainability of the services in Rhondda Cynon Taf once all the remaining Trust Fund monies had been spent.

The Chairman called upon Mr Kieran Harris, Director of Operations, CIB to update the Trustees in respect of the contract for the provision of services to blind and partially sighted people between Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council and CIB.

As part of his update, Mr Harris outlined for Members consideration the proposal to unrestrict the Trust fund advising of the benefits such an approach would have for the organisation in obtaining future funding streams, with the potential to sustain services beyond the contractual three year agreement.

Subject to agreement at the next meeting of the RCT Charity for the Visually Impaired Cabinet Committee

The Chairman thanked Mr Harris for his update and opened up the item for Members comments.

Members spoke positively on the work of the organisation and the proposal presented and referred to the similar practices with unrestricted contracts by other local authorities.

One Member voiced his concerns over job sustainability and was reassured by Mr Harris that the proposal would have a positive impact on job sustainability in the future and proceeded to provide examples of such benefits.

The Chair queried the expenditure of the funds to date, to which Mr Harris responded and also commented on the data that could be provided to Members illustrating the expenditure of the funds. The option of quarterly invoices was raised as a potential option by the Head of Service, Short Term & Intervention.

Following discussions on the report it was **RESOLVED**:

- a) To note the report and rationale for the proposal in respect of unrestricting of funds, as presented by the Director of Operations for Cardiff Institute for the Blind (CIB)
- b) To unrestrict the Trust fund given by the Trustees of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Trust Fund for Blind and Partially Sighted People in RCT (the Trust Fund).
- c) To receive a further update by Cardiff Institute for the Blind on the progress of their work and applications for funding during January 2017, or when deemed appropriate by the chair.

(N.B. the chairman requested Mr Harris to leave the meeting during their deliberations)

This meeting closed at 13:25pm

Cllr G Hopkins

Chairman



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

RHONDDA CYNON TAF TRUST FUND FOR THE VISUALLY IMPAIRED CABINET COMMITTEE

28TH FEBRUARY 2017

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Authors: Yvonne Powell, Contracts Officer, Purchasing and

Commissioning Team - 01443 425434

Luisa Bridgman- Head of Service, Short Term Intervention,

Community Care - 01443 425442

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update the cabinet committee members (the Trustees) of the 'Rhondda Cynon Taf Trust Fund for Blind and Partially Sighted People in RCT' (the Trust Fund) on the service that 'Cardiff Institute for the Blind' (t/a RNIB Cymru (CIB)) is delivering within Rhondda Cynon Taff. The report also seeks to update the Trustees regarding the charity's success in obtaining alternative funding and undertaking multiple funding bids to sustain services within Rhondda Cynon Taff.

2. **RECOMMENDATIONS**

- 2.1 Trustees are requested to note and endorse the actions being taken to monitor and support existing schemes with the limited funding that remains available.
- 2.2 Trustees are requested to note and endorse the success achieved in obtaining funding for new projects within RCT County Borough for blind and partially sighted people.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 It was agreed at the Cabinet meeting on 26th February 2015 that there should be a 3 year extension (subject to appropriate termination clauses) to the existing contract with CIB, with an option for further annual extensions subject to funding being available, adequate performance and appropriate termination clauses.



- 3.2 CIB (as from 1st April 2015) is receiving the remaining Trust Fund monies at the rate of £33,000 per annum for the next 3 years. Any funds remaining after the 3 years will be paid annually at a rate to be approved by the Trustees.
- 3.3 It was agreed that the Trust Fund would be wound up after the remaining monies are spent.
- 3.4 At the meeting with CIB and the Trustees on 7th July 2016 a decision was made to unrestrict the funds that the Trust Fund provides to allow CIB to become more successful in obtaining alternative funding and undertake multiple bids to sustain services within Rhondda Cynon Taf.

4. OPTION/ISSUES

- 4.1 As noted in the meeting of the Trustees (September 2015), CIB cannot guarantee replacement funding beyond 2018 and are heavily reliant upon contracts, lottery and statutory funding, and donations, all of which are becoming difficult to obtain in the current financial climate.
- 4.2 CIB has indicated that fundraising for the Charity has been very limited over the last year. They do not have staff to support such activities, as their main focus is to deliver services within RCT to the people who are in need.
- 4.3 RNIB as a national organisation have a fundraising Team. A percentage of monies raised would be given to CIB to help in supporting the project.
- 4.4 CIB will be considering generating additional money for the scheme by using the commercial arm of their charity to put income into the existing scheme within RCT. In February they will be launching a scheme where any goods that are donated to the charity will displayed on ebay, some of the monies raised will be allocated to support the scheme in RCT.
- 4.5 Trustees are asked to note that whilst funding is available for the purpose of developing new initiatives within existing services, (see 5.1) funding to support the continuation of current schemes is more difficult to obtain.

5. CURRENT POSITION

5.1 Since the Trustees last met in July 2016, CIB have obtained confirmation (December 2016) from the Big Lottery that they have been successful in their bid for funding for their New Places, New



Experiences project. Approximately half a million pounds over a 4 year period has been awarded to CIB to deliver the above project in Cardiff Swansea and RCT which will cover 6 Local Authority areas (Cardiff and the Vale, Swansea and Neath Port, RCT and Merthyr).

- 5.2 The 'New Places, New Experiences' project will engage with and influence the delivery of local sports, leisure and interest services resulting in enhanced, more accessible community services that meet the needs of people with sight loss. It aims to give blind and partially sighted people the knowledge, skills and confidence to try and then continue participating in leisure, sport and interest activities.
- 5.3 The project will work with existing mainstream sports and leisure organisations and in close partnership with the local authority to make use of the expertise of local sports development officers, leisure and community services.
- 5.4 Trustees are requested to note that the service CIB is providing within the Rhondda Cynon Taff area for visually impaired residents continues to be delivered competently. Since the contract extension the following services continue to be developed; (this list is not exhaustive)
 - The contact lines continue to operate to support people who are blind or partially sighted across RCT. Currently there are 342 RCT citizens (to date) on the CIB contact list.
 - CIB continue to facilitate and support social groups in Aberdare, Mountain Ash, Pontypridd, Rhydfelin and Ferndale for people who are blind or partially sighted.
 - CIB continue to address any issues resulting from home visits and the service continues to provide emotional support to service users. In addition CIB have recently developed a new service called ('Time to Talk' (TtT)) similar to the telebefriending service currently provided but aims more to focus primarily on supporting those people who are newly diagnosed.
 - CIB continue to work in partnership with RNIB (in order to signpost individuals to the organisations Counselling and welfare rights services), the Council's sensory impairment service and the Cwm Taf UHB eye clinic liaison officer.
 - CIB continue to signpost individuals to relevant agencies and accept referrals for services from the Council's sensory and rehabilitation Team.



- CIB continue to raise awareness of the services they provide by attending and facilitating promotional events. Between August and October they visited Prince Charles Hospitals, Festivals, Tesco stores Community Centres and Council events (e.g. Big Bite Welsh Bite 2016)
- CIB continue to provide information and advice about the services they
 provide via a quarterly newsletter, telephone, website, facebook and
 twitter.
- 5.5 The Councils Contract Monitoring Officer will continue to review and monitor the performance of the service on a regular basis.

6. CONCLUSION

It is proposed that a further meeting on the progress of CIB t/a RNIB Cymru, and the work they do within Rhondda Cynon Taff (to include notification of any applications for alternative funding bids) be scheduled for September 2017 in order to provide Trustees with a further update.